
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU 

 
 

 
 

Planning Delivery 
Committee 

 
 
 

 
 
Members of the Planning Delivery Committee of Gravesham Borough Council are summoned 
to attend a meeting to be held at the Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend, Kent on Tuesday, 
13 September 2011 at 7.30 pm when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed 
to be transacted. 
 

 
S Kilkie 
Assistant Director (Communities) 
 
 

Agenda 
 

Part A 
Items likely to be considered in Public 

1. Apologies.   

2. To sign the minutes of the previous meeting.  (Pages 1 - 4) 

3. To declare any interests Members may have in the items contained on this 
agenda. When declaring an interest Members should state what their 
interest is.  

 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or those (if any) in Part B in public.  

 

5. Corporate Business Plan 2011-15 - Report and Appendix One herewith.  (Pages 5 - 12) 

6. Quarter 1 Performance Update - Planning Delivery specific items - Report 
and Appendix One herewith.  

(Pages 13 - 26) 

 An update on performance in quarter one of 2011-12 against the areas of 
focus and measures of accountability specific to the Planning Delivery 
Committee.   
 

 

7. Conservation - Report herewith.  (Pages 27 - 32) 

8. Draft National Planning Policy Framework - Report and CLG Summary 
herewith.  

(Pages 33 - 50) 

Public Document Pack



9. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency.  

 

10. Exclusion   

 To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
  
 

 

 Part B 
Items likely to be considered in Private 

 

 
 
 
Members 
 
Cllr Lee Croxton (Chair) 
Cllr Peter Rayner (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors: Valerie Ashenden 

Harold Craske 
Jane Cribbon 
Brian Sangha 
Makhan Singh 
Michael Snelling 
Robin Theobald 
Michael Wenban 
 

 
Substitutes: Lesley Boycott 

Colin Caller 
Glen Handley 
Rosemary Leadley 
John Loughlin 
Derek Shelbrooke 
 

 
 
 
 



1 

Planning Delivery Committee 
 

Monday, 18 July 2011                         7.30pm 
 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Lee Croxton (Chair) 
Cllr Peter Rayner (Vice-Chair) 
 
Cllrs: Valerie Ashenden 

Harold Craske 
Jane Cribbon 
Brian Sangha 
Makhan Singh 
Robin Theobald 
Michael Wenban 
Glen Handley (In place of Michael Snelling) 
 

Note:  Cllr John Burden was also in attendance 
 
Kevin Burbidge Director (Business) 
Wendy Lane Principal Planning Officer 
Tony Chadwick Principal Planning Officer 
Alison Nailer Project Manager, CAMS 
Nick Channon Committee Services Officer 
 
 
 
1. Welcome  
 
The Chair welcomed Members and Officers to the first meeting of the Planning Delivery 
Committee. 
 
2. Apologies  
 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr Michael Snelling and Cllr Glen Handley 
attended as his substitute. 
 
3. Declarations of Interest  
 
No declarations of interest were declared. 
 
4. Cobham Ashenbank Management Scheme - Presentation  
 
Alison Nailer, Project Manager, gave a presentation on the Cobham Ashenbank 
Management Scheme (CAMS). 
 
CAMS was established in 1997 to undertake a programme of projects to conserve and 
enhance historic, nature conservation and landscape interests within Cobham Park and 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



Planning Delivery Committee 18.07.2011 

2 

Ashenbank Wood area as a result of proposals in respect of the Channel Tunnel Rail Link 
and its impact on this area. 
 
There were eight partners in CAMS as follows:- 
 

• Gravesham Borough Council 
• English Heritage 
• Natural England 
• Cobham Hall 
• The National Trust 
• Union Railways 
• Kent County Council 
• The Woodland Trust 

 
The core of the CAMS area is located within Cobham Park which is now owned by a range 
of individuals and organisations. 
 
The work undertaken by CAMS, including the complete restoration of the Darnley 
Mausoleum, had been completed in two phases at a cost of £8m.  The funding had been 
provided in varying amounts by the Heritage Lottery Fund, the Office of the Deputy Prime 
Minister, English Heritage, Department of Communities and Local Government, the 
Georgian Group and Gravesham Borough Council.  
 
The CAMS scheme is nearing completion and will be handed over to the National Trust 
shortly. 
 
Members thanked Alison Nailer for a very informative presentation. 
 

It was agreed that the report be noted and a visit to the site be arranged for 
Members later in the year. 

 
5. Revised Local Development Scheme 2011/14  
 
The Committee considered a revised draft Local Development Scheme (LDS) which sets out 
how the Council intends to process the delivery of key documents, in particular the Core 
Strategy. 
 
The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act requires Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) to 
prepare and review an LDS for their area with the primary objective of setting out a 
programme of work for the preparation of the Council's Local Development Framework 
(LDF) for three years ahead (2011/14). 
 
The current LDS adopted by Cabinet in January 2009 is out of date and needs to be updated 
now so that key stakeholders and interested parties, including the public, are aware of the 
Council's intention in respect of document production and key milestones. 
 
The Committee was apprised of new timescales which needed to be met to ensure a Core 
Strategy is in place by December 2012.  Due to the Core Strategy not now being adopted 
until 2012 it was necessary to look beyond the 2006/10 time period to 2011/31. 
 

Page 2



Planning Delivery Committee 18.07.2011 

3 

The Committee was informed of key milestones in respect of the public consultation process 
and the various costs that are anticipated against each budget year. 
 
An interim public consultation process will commence in October 2011 together with 
obtaining the views of landowners and developers on their intentions.  Work on the LDF will 
dominate the work of this committee for the next two years therefore Members' input was 
crucial to drive this forward, in particular the vision for the Borough over the next 30 years, 
with the emphasis on Gravesham being a place where people can live and be happy. 
 
 
 It was agreed that:- 
 

(1) authority be delegated to the Lead Member for the Local Development 
Framework (LDF) and the Director (Business) to finalise the new Local 
Development Scheme (LDS) 2011/14 for submission; 

 
(2) the amended Local Development Scheme (LDS) be submitted to the 

Department for Communities and Local Government for approval. 
 
Note: Cllr John Burden spoke with leave of the Chair on this item. 
 
 Close of meeting  
 
The meeting ended at 8.40 pm. 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Gravesham Borough Council 

Report to: Planning Delivery Committee 

Date: 13 September 2011 

Reporting officer: Director (Business) 

Subject: Corporate Business Plan 2011-15 

Purpose and summary of report:  

To present members of the Planning Delivery Committee with a summary of the key areas of 
focus from the Corporate Business Plan that fall within the remit of the committee. 

Recommendations: 

Members are requested to retain appendix one to this report for future reference purposes. 

 
1. Introduction 

1.1 At the meeting of Full Council on 21 June 2011 the Council adopted a new 
Corporate Business Plan for Gravesham covering the four-year period 2011-2015. 

1.2 The Corporate Business Plan sets out 18 key areas of focus that the council will 
be working towards over the coming years; these have been informed by an 
extensive consultation exercise involving the Gravesham Community, Members 
and officers of the council. 

 

2. Planning Delivery Committee 

2.1 Whilst there are 18 key areas of focus within the full Corporate Business Plan, and 
the teams reporting to this committee have an involvement in the majority (to one 
degree or another) there are four areas which specifically fall within the remit of 
the Business and Partnerships Committee: 

Area of focus 6 – Managing housing developments in the borough to ensure they 
meet the needs of the community. 

Area of focus 13 – Driving the economic development of the borough. 

Area of focus 14 – Ensuring a sustainable high quality built and green 
environment and safeguarding our cultural heritage. 

Area of focus 15 – Working with partners to develop high quality transport 
infrastructure. 

Agenda Item 5Page 5



2 

2.2 Appendix one to this report provides extracts from the full Corporate Business 
Plan 2011-15 for each of the four key areas of focus within the remit of the 
Business & Partnerships Committee. 

 

3. Risk 

3.1 It is important that Members have key reference information available to them in 
relation to the remit of the committee to help them in their deliberations and 
drawing of conclusions. 

 

4. Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 

4.1 The full Corporate Business Plan document includes two key areas of focus 
relating specifically to crime and anti-social behaviour; ‘Keeping Gravesham Safe’ 
and ‘Raising young people’s awareness of crime and anti-social behaviour issues’. 
Whilst the work of the Planning Delivery Committee is not directly related to 
Community Safety, there may be aspects of the committee’s work that will need to 
take into consideration community safety issues. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Background papers:  there are no background papers pertaining to this report 

Page 6



 

Corporate Business Plan 2011-15 (Performance & Administration Committee)       Page | 1  

Connecting with the Community 
 
 
Corporate Business Plan 2011-15 
 
 
Extract for the Planning Delivery 
Committee 
 

A
ppendix O

ne 
P

age 7



 

Corporate Business Plan 2011-15 (Performance & Administration Committee)       Page | 2  

6. Managing housing developments in the borough to ensure they meet the 
needs of the community 

 
The borough of Gravesham faces significant challenges in relation to the 
provision of housing to meet the needs of its existing and potential future 
population.  It is also important for the council to ensure that supporting 
infrastructure is provided to meet future needs.  The council is therefore 
committed to ensuring that the right types of housing and associated 
services are provided in Gravesham. 
To achieve this aim, the council is keen to work with developers to ensure 
that new developments represent the most effective housing mix to meet 
our local needs.  It is important that the new developments look to the 
long-term future of Gravesham as well as meet short-term requirements; a 
balance of flats and houses is required. 
Key to this is the delivery of affordable housing within the borough.  
Affordable housing represents an instrumental tool in helping residents 
onto the housing ladder who ordinarily wouldn’t be able to afford to do so.  
The continued provision of affordable housing in the borough is a key 
objective for the council. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
In the next four years we will: 

• Use evidence based information relating to housing need in the 
borough to ensure that future housing development provides the type, 
tenure and mix of housing to meet existing and future needs. 

• Ensure that provision is made for infrastructure and services to meet 
existing and future needs. 

• Continue to work with Moat Housing to ensure the successful 
completion of the Christianfields Estate regeneration project. 

• Work with housing developers to maximise the supply of affordable 
housing within the borough. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

* Targets for these measures are due to be finalised as part of the Local Development Framework due to be published in 2012. 
 
 
 

Measures of Accountability 

  Baseline 2010-11 Target 2014-15 

CBP 13 Net additional homes provided. 185 TBC * 

CBP 14 Number of affordable homes delivered (gross). 111 TBC * 

 

P
age 8



 

Corporate Business Plan 2011-15 (Performance & Administration Committee)       Page | 3  

13. Driving the economic development of the borough 
 

Recent years have been particularly difficult for businesses nationally and 
Gravesham has been no exception with increased unemployment and 
some businesses having gone out of business. 
The council has always worked hard to support businesses and during this 
period the council has continued this work to maintain momentum and 
help build confidence in the local economy through pro-active initiatives 
such as the series of regular business networking events, promoting of the 
town centre, face-to-face support for start-up businesses and concerted 
action on vacant properties.  
The council wants to see Gravesham’s economy further recover and 
ultimately thrive and understands where the growth potential exists at this 
current point. Therefore, over the next four years the council are 
committed to employment growth in the borough by way of encouraging 
enterprise, river-related employment opportunities, including a Centre of 
Marine Excellence, and tourism development.   
To support this growth programme, as a local employer and working in 
conjunction with partners such as Employ Kent Thameside and North 
West Kent College, the council will work to ensure that residents have the 
right skills and training to find employment in the future workplace. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In the next four years we will: 

• Work with partners in the Local Economic Partnership and Thames 
Gateway Kent Partnership to ensure that the economic needs, issues 
and opportunities for Gravesham are recognised and addressed.  

• Work with private sector partners and investors to create better 
conditions for economic growth and employment generation in the 
borough, by emphasising the riverside location and benefits of high 
speed train services in promoting Gravesham as a place to do 
business.  

• Encourage the retention and growth of local businesses and the 
formation of new enterprises in both the urban and rural economies of 
Gravesham. 

• Provide support for investment in physical infrastructure and superfast 
broadband, business workspace and education and skills in both 
urban and rural Gravesham. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Measures of Accountability 

  Baseline 2010-11 Target 2014-15 

CBP 28 Resident rate of unemployment (number of people aged 16-64 claiming 
unemployment benefit). 4% 3.6% 

CBP 29 Town centre footfall (Average weekly footfall). 181,710 195,000 

 

P
age 9



 

Corporate Business Plan 2011-15 (Performance & Administration Committee)       Page | 4  

14. Ensuring a sustainable high quality built and green environment and 
safeguarding our cultural heritage 

 
Whilst it is recognised that there is a need for regeneration in Gravesham, 
it is important that designs are of appropriate to context, sustainable, and 
preserve and enhance the borough’s natural and built environments.  This 
considered approach has seen the development of phase one of the 
Transport Quarter with the re-routing of the one way system and the 
configuration of the Civic Centre forecourt and assistance in the 
development of the new Gurdwara.  
Understanding the importance of multi-functional green spaces and our 
riverside location in supporting regeneration, the creation of liveable 
neighbourhoods and a distinct sense of place is vital too. 
The Local Development Framework (LDF) will therefore play a pivotal role 
in identifying the scale and types of development and supporting 
infrastructure required for the borough and will draw together a wide range 
of environmental issues reflecting local priorities. Long-term burial 
provision is an example of supporting infrastructure that has been 
identified as a local community priority. 
In shaping the future of the borough, the council are committed to working 
with partners to ensure local cultural assets are recognised in all their 
diversity and their usage maximised.  This will not only promote tourism 
and the creation of extra jobs but also encourage residents to take an 
interest and pride in the borough as a whole.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In the next four years we will: 

• Ensure the sustainable regeneration and growth of the borough 
through regeneration projects and also the protection and 
enhancement of the natural and built environment, green spaces and 
heritage assets. 

• Work with landowners and developers within the borough to assist 
with the delivery of key regeneration sites that are outside of the 
council’s ownership. 

• Ensure the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
Development Plan Document, as part of the LDF, is completed and 
adopted in order to provide clear development direction for the 
borough, and to inform the development of infrastructure charging 
schedules. 

• Increase the contribution of tourism to the local economy through the 
promotion of Gravesham as a place to visit, developing its visitor 
attractions and accommodation and delivering high quality tourist 
information services.  

• Encourage a vibrant environment within which the arts, culture and the 
borough’s heritage can flourish. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Measures of Accountability 

  Baseline 2010-11 Target 2014-15 

CBP 30 Towncentric footfall (annual target with monthly updates). 34,000 36,600 

 

P
age 10



 

Corporate Business Plan 2011-15 (Performance & Administration Committee)       Page | 5  

15. Working with partners to develop high quality transport infrastructure 
 
The road and public transport network in Gravesham is not only important 
in ensuring the economic prosperity of the borough but also in enabling 
residents to move around the borough with ease. Recent major changes in 
the borough have included the widening of the A2 to four lanes, Fastrack 
and the HS1 domestic service.  
In delivering a high quality road infrastructure, the council will work with 
Kent CC and the Highways Agency to ensure that the highways within the 
borough are maintained to an acceptable standard and, where required, 
that repairs are made with minimal impact on the residents and visitors to 
the borough.  
The council will also continue to maintain its car parks within the borough 
to a high standard. Issues with on-street parking will be tackled, including 
the issue of cars parking on pavements.  
On the wider transport network, the council will work with partners such as 
Network Rail and Arriva to ensure there is a sound public transport 
network throughout the borough. With developments planned for 
infrastructure on the River Thames and aims to enhance walking and 
cycling provision in the borough, the council is fully committed to delivering 
a high quality transport infrastructure. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In the next four years we will: 

• Progress the second and third phases of the Transport Quarter project 
by working with Network Rail and Kent Highways Services to help 
secure the required funding and deliver the project . 

• Work to ensure that the road system is enhanced to allow considered 
development and address traffic issues, but oppose schemes that 
have serious environmental impacts. 

• Work with partners to address public transport issues for an ageing 
local population and develop wider provision of transport infrastructure 
in the borough. 

• Maintain safe and secure car parks which have the PARK MARK 
standard and which meet the needs of those working, shopping or 
commuting from Gravesham. 

• Ensure robust enforcement of those drivers who do not comply with 
parking restrictions, both on- and off-street. 

 
 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 

Measures of Accountability 

Achievement against this area of focus will be derived from a number of activities.  Progress will be reported in the council’s Annual Report. 
 

P
age 11



P
age 12

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Gravesham Borough Council 

Report to: Planning Delivery Committee 

Date: 13 September 2011 

Reporting officer: Director (Business) 

Subject: Performance Update – Quarter One 2011-12 
(April 2011 to June 2011) 
 

Purpose and summary of report:  

To provide Members of the Planning Delivery Committee with a report on the progress made 
by the council in delivering the Areas of Focus and Measures of Accountability (relevant to 
the committee) as set out within the Corporate Business Plan 2011-15. 

Recommendations: 

Members are requested to review the information contained within the report appendix and 
refer any concerns they may have to the Planning Delivery Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
further consideration. 
 
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 In July 2011 the council formally launched its new Corporate Business Plan 2011-
15, setting out 18 key Areas of Focus and 36 Measures of Accountability for the 
council for the next four years. 

1.2 At the meeting of the Performance & Administration Committee on 13 July 2011, it 
was agreed that regular performance updates would be provided to each Cabinet 
Committee on those areas within the Corporate Business Plan that specifically 
relate to the remit of each committee. 

 

2. Reporting 

2.1 Appendix one to this report provides an update for Members on performance in 
the first quarter of 2011-12 within the four key Areas of Focus and the five 
Measures of Accountability that fall within the remit of the Planning Delivery 
Committee.  The appendix is set out as follows: 

2.1.1 Areas of Focus Update – this provides an update for Members on work 
that has been undertaken by the council between April 2011 and June 
2011 in relation to each of the key areas of focus within the Corporate 
Business Plan. 

Agenda Item 6Page 13



2 

2.1.2 Measures of Accountability – this provides Members with details of 
performance from April 2011 to June 2011 against the measures of 
accountability set out in the Corporate Business Plan.  Information on 
performance over the last quarter is presented both graphically and in 
tabular form.  The table also provides a ‘traffic light system’ to enable 
Members to assess if the council is performing well against the target it 
has set for each measure.  A commentary on performance has been 
provided where considered necessary. 

2.2 Members are requested to review and discuss the information contained within 
the appendix. 

 

3. Executive Performance Summary 

3.1 A number of new performance measures have been introduced in the new 
Corporate Business Plan and consequently, there is no comparative data for 
these measures in the first quarter. 

3.2 Key areas of improvement/good performance 

3.2.1 The measures relating to the footfall within the town centre (CBP 29) and 
through TownCentric (CBP 30) are both currently showing good 
performance against target. 

3.3 Potential areas for review 

3.3.1 The number of additional homes provided (CBP 13) in the first quarter of 
2011-12 is lower than the target that has been set.  The target that has 
been set for the council is based upon the South East Plan which sets out 
the need for Gravesham to deliver 465 dwellings per year between 2006 
and 2026.  Due to the current economic climate, leading to a lack of 
finance for developers, the number of new builds has reduced. 

 

4. Legal Implications 

4.1 There are no legal implications arising from this Performance Report.   

 

5. Financial and Value for Money Considerations 

5.1 Quarterly reporting and review of the council’s progress against its strategic 
priorities provides an important opportunity to influence performance.   Such 
action will also help to ensure that council resources are being directed in an 
efficient and effective manner and to the benefit of the Gravesham community.  

 

 

Page 14



3 

6. Risk Assessment 

6.1 Regular monitoring of the council’s performance against its strategic objectives is 
vital to ensuring that the council is effectively using its resources and working 
towards meetings these objectives.  It is therefore important that Members receive 
and consider regular updates on performance to enable prompt action to be taken 
to address performance issues, where necessary. 

 

7. Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 

7.1 The full Corporate Business Plan document includes two key areas of focus 
relating specifically to crime and anti-social behaviour; ‘Keeping Gravesham Safe’ 
and ‘Raising young people’s awareness of crime and anti-social behaviour 
issues’.  Whilst the work of the Planning Delivery Committee is not directly related 
to Community Safety, there may be aspects of the Committee’s work that will 
need to take community safety issues into consideration. 

 

8. Equality Impact Assessment 

8.1 The Corporate Business Plan 2011-15, which sets out the council’s strategic 
priorities and measures of accountability considered in this report, was subject to 
an equality impact assessment prior to adoption by the council. 

 

9. Policy Considerations 

9.1 The Corporate Business Plan 2011-15, which sets out the council’s strategic 
priorities and measures of accountability considered in this report, forms part of 
the council’s Policy Framework. 

 

 

 

 

 

Screening for equality impacts: 

Question Answer Explanation of impacts 

a. Does the decision being made or 
recommended through this paper 
have potential to cause adverse 
impact or discriminate against 
different groups in the community? 

No The report is intended to provide an 
update on the council’s performance in 
delivering the priorities for the 
community as set out in the Corporate 
Business Plan 2011-15. 

Page 15



4 

Screening for equality impacts: 

Question Answer Explanation of impacts 

b. Does the decision being made or 
recommended through this paper 
make a positive contribution to 
promoting equality? 

No The report is intended to provide an 
update on the council’s performance in 
delivering the priorities for the 
community as set out in the Corporate 
Business Plan 2011-15. 

c. What steps are you taking to mitigate, 
reduce, avoid or minimise the impacts 
identified above? 

  

 
In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have given due 
regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted in the table above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background papers pertaining to this report are held within Audit and Performance team.  
Requests to view these papers must, in the first instance, be directed to Electoral and 
Committee Services. 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Gravesham Borough Council 

Report to: Planning Delivery Committee 

Date: 13th September 2011  

Reporting officer: Director Business 

Subject: Conservation 

Purpose and summary of report: 

To inform Members of conservation related activities undertaken in the Borough 

Recommendations: 

For information 

 
 
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Conservation of any kind is the means by which man makes best use of his 
resources, for the benefit of present and future generations. In the natural world 
conservation ranges from the protection of individual species to entire habitats, so 
as to ensure the well-being of the wider environment in which we all live. Similarly, 
conservation of the built environment is the method by which we retain and protect 
those man-made aspects of the environment that society values – be they 
prehistoric stone circles, Roman temples, medieval cathedrals, Georgian terraces 
or even (the once-ubiquitous) red telephone kiosks – in order that they may be 
experienced, studied and enjoyed by society as a whole. 

1.2 The reasons why we wish to retain certain buildings and structures are often 
concerned with historic and aesthetic factors but more personal issues such as a 
sense of place, a sense of identity, a sense of security (in the familiar) and a 
sense of connection with our ancestors should not be overlooked. Regardless of 
motivation, conservation of the built environment often results in places of high 
quality, both in physical and social terms. Consequently such places can be more 
desirable locations in which to live and work, making it easier for them to attract 
inward investment for business, industry, education and tourism. For that reason, 
those with an interest in the viability of any town or city often view conservation as 
an important consideration in the decision-making process. 

2. Conservation in a National Context 

2.1 Since the late nineteenth century, when development pressures in Britain first 
caused wide-scale harm to what we now refer to as the historic environment, 

Agenda Item 7Page 27



2 

efforts have been made to ensure that change occurs in a more managed form, so 
that the contribution made by existing buildings and areas is taken into account. 

2.2 Today statutory protection is afforded to buildings and areas considered to be of 
architectural and historic interest through two mechanisms – the listing of 
individual buildings and the designating of conservation areas (explained in more 
detail below). Such protection does not necessarily preclude alteration but allows 
the importance and contribution made by these buildings and areas to be fully 
assessed as part of the decision-making process, thereby ensuring that this 
valuable resource is not lost in needless fashion. It is increasingly the case that 
heritage assets are seen as the catalysts to, and focal points of, successful 
redevelopment projects, rather than an impediment to necessary change... 

2.3 Under the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act of 1990 central 
government (or its representative) is responsible for identifying buildings of special 
architectural or historic interest. Any building or structure so identified is then 
afforded statutory protection through the process of being added to the lists of 
such buildings compiled by central government (hence the term ‘listed building’). 

2.4 There are three grades of listed building: grade II (that is, grade two), grade II* 
(two starred) and grade I. The vast majority of listed buildings are protected at 
grade II (approximately 94%). Those of even greater significance are listed at 
grade II* (about 4%) and those of greatest importance at grade I (roughly 2%). 

2.5 Once listed, permission is required from the relevant authority to make any 
change affecting the special interest of a listed building. Such permission is called 
Listed Building Consent. Local planning authorities may determine applications 
relating to grade II listed buildings without recourse to any consultation with 
English Heritage but are required to consult that body with regards to applications 
relating to buildings listed at the higher grades. The local planning authority is also 
required to refer any recommendation to grant consent for a higher grade building 
to the Secretary of State if the recommendation is contrary to advice received from 
English Heritage. The setting of a listed building is also a material consideration in 
the determination of any relevant planning application. 

2.6 Conservation areas are defined as having special architectural or historic interest, 
the character or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance. 
Protection is afforded through a process referred to as designation. In the case of 
conservation areas, designation may be made at local level, although the 
Secretary of State and English Heritage also possess powers to designate. 
Permission is required to demolish a building within a conservation area (subject 
to certain exemptions). Furthermore, in determining any planning application 
affecting a conservation area, local planning authorities have a duty to seek the 
preservation or enhancement referred to above. Subject to minimum size 
considerations, trees within conservation areas are also afforded a degree of 
protection. 

2.7 Within national policy and guidance, conservation areas (like listed buildings and 
scheduled monuments) are referred to as designated heritage assets because 
they have been identified as having particular historic interest and therefore 
afforded statutory protection. 

Page 28



3 

3. Conservation in Gravesham 

3.1 Like all locals councils, Gravesham has its list of buildings of special architectural 
or historic interest, containing the details of all those buildings and structures 
within the borough that have been afforded statutory protection by central 
government. The Council has several hundred listed buildings, the vast majority of 
which are listed at grade II, reflecting closely the national average cited previously. 

3.2 The borough also has twenty-three conservation areas, just over half of which are 
within the urban or suburban parts of Gravesend.  

3.3 The means by which the Council secures the future of its designated assets are 
numerous, although much of it falls within the realm of planning control. As noted, 
proposed changes to listed buildings are considered under the mechanism of 
Listed Building Consent, whist proposed demolitions within conservation areas are 
assessed via applications for Conservation Area Consent. In addition, relevant 
planning applications must also be assessed for their impact on listed buildings 
and conservation areas. Conservation area status assists the Council in seeking 
and securing high quality new development in such areas. Extensive pre-
application discussion often occurs between the potential applicant and planning 
officers in order that the application itself has the best chance of being approved. 

3.4 Where any application is refused by the Council the applicant may appeal that 
decision with the Planning Inspectorate. The Council has a good track record of 
successfully defending its decisions, as a result of those decisions having been 
based on both national and local planning policies and supplementary guidance. 

3.5 National policy currently takes the form of Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning 
for the Historic Environment. Local policy is contained within the adopted local 
plan.  

3.6 In terms of supplementary guidance the Council also executes its duties under the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to create appraisals 
and accompanying management plans for each of its conservation areas. These 
appraisals assist both applicants and planners in terms of the suitability of any 
proposal, and also prove invaluable to the Council at appeals.  They also prove to 
be of considerable interest to the general public. 

3.7 Appraisals and Management Plans for all Urban Conservation Areas have been 
adopted by the council and are available on the council’s web site.  Those for the 
rural areas are nearing completion and will go through the adoption process in 
2011-2012. 

3.8 In addition to the appraisals and management plans noted above, the Council 
produces guidance notes on matters of conservation and design, to assist those 
with an interest in designated heritage assets, be they owners of listed buildings or 
conservation area properties, developers or architects seeking planning 
permission, or the general public wishing to gain a better understanding of 
heritage and conservation issues. These guidance notes, like the appraisals and 
management plans, are easily accessible and available to download via the 
Council’s website. They are also available as hard copies if preferred.  Those 
currently available include Shop front Design, Listed Buildings, Article 4 Directions 
and Conservation Areas. 

Page 29



4 

3.9 In seeking to fulfil its duty and aspiration to preserve and enhance the character 
and appearance of its conservation areas a significant tool available to the Council 
is the Article 4 Direction. This brings within planning control certain changes (such 
as those to windows or doors) that are normally classed as permitted development 
not requiring specific approval. Ad hoc, inappropriate changes to buildings can 
cause incremental erosion to the character and appearance of conservation areas 
over the years, leaving them visually poorer and this is a nationwide problem.  
Following public consultation within the Borough to establish that there is 
widespread support for such action, Article 4 Directions have been made for the 
majority of its conservation areas, thereby arresting the harm caused and allowing 
the damage to be progressively undone in the future as applications are received 
to replace fabric affected. 

3.10 Accompanying planning control is a means by which to care for the borough’s 
built-heritage.  In recent years the Council has adopted a more pro-active stance 
in terms of the condition and presentation of its heritage assets. This has involved 
an extensive programme of grant-aided repair and restoration, primarily using 
significant funds from a number of grant schemes run by English Heritage and 
Heritage Lottery Fund.  In target areas such as the High Street, Gravesend, the 
Heritage Economic Regeneration Scheme (HERS), an English Heritage grant 
scheme, has transformed the appearance of the town’s historic core and Town 
Pier which benefited from an English Heritage grant. The benefits of properly 
maintained and utilised buildings are already apparent, the grade II* listed 
buildings Old Town Hall and the Town Pier being perfect examples.  

3.11 When the borough was running these sizeable grant schemes, it was calculated 
that every £1 of grant aid generated additional £20 expenditure in the local 
economy. 

 

3.12 The Council has also done much to ensure that the Gravesham has little in the 
way of empty properties which, if left unchecked, can cause so much social blight 
to an area. Through its Empty Properties Working Group, use is made of 
legislative powers and of financial assistance to encourage owners of neglected 
and empty properties to bring them back in to use.   

4. Conclusion 

4.1 As with most places, Gravesham has witnessed great changes to its character 
and appearance over the years, particularly in its urban areas. Gravesend and 
Northfleet have seen mid-nineteenth century town planning for the middle classes 
come and go, swathes of Victorians day trip in an early form of tourism, and heavy 
industry along the riverfront boom and decline.  

4.2 Following a period of decline, therefore, in recent years the borough has been 
looking to reinvent itself, making best use of its assets. Those assets are 
numerous, but perhaps two stand out as offering something unique, or at least 
very special. The first is the potential for interest and investment in the town centre 
as a result of the newly-established fast rail connections to central London. In 
years to come Gravesend and the wider borough may become a magnet for those 
professionals wishing to find an affordable place to live within such a relatively 
stress-free and easy commuting distance of the capital.  

Page 30



5 

4.3 Combined with that attribute, the second of Gravesham’s assets, perhaps 
surprisingly to some, is the quality and interest of much of its built environment, 
both rural and urban. Although no one would pretend that the borough does not 
face some social and economic challenges to its well-being, there is yet much left 
of quality from earlier times to assist in its revitalisation. As such, conservation has 
an important role to play in ensuring that the borough realises its full potential. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Gravesham Borough Council 

Report to: Planning Delivery Committee 

Date: 13 September 2011 

Reporting officer: Director, Business 

Subject: Draft National Planning Policy Framework 

Purpose and summary of report:  

To explain the current Government consultation on the Draft National Planning Policy 
Framework and the implications for Gravesham 

Recommendations: 

The Planning Delivery Portfolio holder be asked to write to the Department of Communities 
and Local Government raising the concerns outlined in paragraph 4.5 
 
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The Government published on 25 July a draft of National Planning Policy 
Framework.  It is out to consultation until 17 October 2011. It has already attracted 
adverse comment from a number of environmental organisations such as the 
National Trust and CPRE and strong support from some business organisations.  
It is controversial, though that does not mean it will change significantly.  This 
report is to explain what it contains and the context, and suggest some key 
comments that could be recommended to the Lead Member. 

1.2 The full document can be found at: 
http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/planningandbuilding/pdf/1951811.pdf 

A CLG summary of the document is attached 

1.3 As a consultation document it is regarded as clear indication of the Governments 
“direction of travel” and is therefore capable of being a material consideration for 
the determination of planning applications, appeals etc now. 

2. Background 

2.1 Planning policy is made up of a number documents from a number of sources: 

• Government Guidance – principally in the form of PPS’s (Planning Policy 
Statements) and PPG’s (Planning Policy Guidance – which were in the 
process of being replaced by PPS’s) but also some circular’s and other policy 
statements – they are a material consideration in determining planning 
applications 

Agenda Item 8Page 33



2 

• National Policy Statements (NPS) – prepared by Government and used by the 
Infrastructure Planning Commission (IPC) to determine applications under its 
procedures – six of these have been approved relating to energy – they have 
to be taken into account when preparing a development plan and determining 
applications (on relevant cases below the IPC thresholds) and can override it 
(i.e. for IPC the development plan is only a material consideration) 

• Regional Spatial Strategy – in our case the South East Plan – part of the 
development plan 

• Local Plan – in our case the Gravesham Local Plan 1st Review 1994 saved 
policies – part of the development plan 

2.2 This is in the context of the proposals in the Localism Bill currently before 
Parliament, which if enacted, together with other related changes the net result of 
which would be to: 

• Consolidate Government Guidance into the National Planning Policy 
Framework 

• Abolish IPC as a body but not the process, with final decision making resting 
with the Secretary of State 

• Abolish to the Regional Spatial Strategies 

• Require the Local Plan (reverting from LDF - Local Development Framework -
to this title) to deal with all other relevant issues 

• Introduce the possibility of local communities producing their own plans 
(Neighbourhood Plans) 

3. Proposed changes 

3.1 The key changes in the draft compared with the current position are: 

• Delivering sustainable development, where Local Planning Authorities should 
apply the steps below in a context of permitting development “unless the 
adverse impacts … would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits”: 

o Prepare local plans on the basis of “objectively assessed development 
needs should be met, and with sufficient flexibility to respond to rapid 
shifts in demand or other changes”; 

o Approve development proposals that accord with statutory plans 
without delay; 

o Grant permission where the plan “is absent, silent, indeterminate or 
where relevant policies are out of date”. 

• Removing office development from ‘Town Centre First’ policy (which remains 
for retail and leisure) 

• Extend the time horizon for assessing the impact on retail and leisure 
schemes from 5 years to 10 

Page 34



3 

• Removing maximum non-residential car parking standards for major 
developments 

• Remove brownfield land target (60%) for housing development  

• Require a 5 year housing land supply plus 20%  

• Remove 15 unit minimum threshold for affordable housing 

• Remove rural exceptions policy 

• Commitment to support community facilities (developers may have to justify 
why their development removes them if that is the case) 

• Green Belt remains but subject to the test of openness: 

o Redevelopment of existing sites currently allowed if identified now 
extended to all sites 

o “Local transport infrastructure” is allowed if a requirement can be 
demonstrated 

o Community Right to Build (via a Neighbourhood Plan) 

o All buildings – not just dwellings – can be rebuilt 

• Strategic approach to Green Infrastructure required 

• Ability to designate important open spaces as “local green space” to offer 
greater protection 

• Proposed SAC and Ramsar sites to be protected as well as already 
designated sites 

• Decentralisation of energy targets 

• Proactive approach to identifying opportunities for renewable and low carbon 
energy 

• Streamlining of policies on historic environment 

4. Comment 

4.1 The document is based essentially on the premise that the planning system 
should not be holding up development but positively encouraging it to happen.  
Views will vary on how far this is the case and how this sits with the localism 
agenda, which for many communities tends to be more about what should not 
happen, not what should.  It will be highly significant to the development of the 
Borough. 

4.2 The compression of guidance from over 1,000 pages down to 65 will mean that 
much will be lost.  The Government have already indicated that there will some 
technical guides (e.g. how to should various technical studies that will still be 
required should be carried out) to support it. On past performance further 
guidance will soon start accreting. 

Page 35



4 

4.3 The definition of “sustainable development” is very broad and could make it 
difficult to refuse some applications.  The proposed 20%+ addition on top of the 5 
year land supply would mean that we would need land for 2,790 homes instead of 
2,325 to 2016 under the South East Plan. 

4.4 It emphasises the need for getting the Core Strategy in place as soon as possible 
– in particular the principal that applications should be permitted “where the plan is 
absent, silent, indeterminate or where relevant policies are out of date”.  The 1994 
1st Review is somewhat dated.  In any case a more up to date plan would not 
consider policy matters dealt with at national or regional level unless they needed 
a local dimension, as the guidance was to avoid duplication.  Note also the Core 
Strategy has little weight until it is submitted for examination. 

4.5 There are many comments that could be made about the document, but the key 
ones that might be picked out. 

• On the positive side it does support the Local Plan system and place the 
responsibility firmly on the Local Authority – and there is a balance to be 
struck between national consistency and local choice 

• The document does nothing to address the lack of any plan above 
district/unitary level for issues that do require a wider overview thought the Bill 
contains a duty to co-operate 

• Lack of clarity resulting from the compressed nature of the document - which 
will no doubt lead to a considerable body of case law interpreting it which is 
not a useful use of resources 

• The removal of offices (B1(a) use class) from the town centre sequential test 
– since such uses in general are an important part of the employment base of 
towns and cities and in providing demand for local retailers and services 

• Assumption of permission if a “plan is absent, silent, indeterminate or where 
relevant policies are out of date” – will create difficulties as noted above in the 
short term and potentially with applications for rare uses that have never been 
considered by a plan 

• Uncertainty over the implications for green belt policy – supported on one 
hand but exceptions allowed on the other 

• Loss of rural exceptions policy – this currently allows sites for affordable 
housing and Gypsy and Traveller pitches to be released in the Green Belt, so 
sites will have to be removed from the Green Belt or found from within existing 
settlement boundaries 

• Removal of any form of brownfield target – making it much harder to resist 
green field developments 

• 5 years land supply plus 20%+ - the justification for this is unclear – as is the 
implications for areas constrained by landscape/nature conservation /Green 
Belt 

4.6 An attempt to rationalise planning guidance is to be welcomed as it has tended to 
grow like topsy.  It has been difficult to keep track on where guidance had got to.  
In recent years it has become more structured with recent PPS’s having clear 

Page 36



5 

policies in them.  The admission that various technical guides will be needed 
already dilutes the supposed clarity.  The brevity risks creating more confusion 
and uncertainty. 

5. Risk & Section 17 

5.1 The risk from the National Planning Policy Framework, in the context of the other 
changes in the planning system that are proposed, is that significant development 
could occur against the Council’s wishes and that this might have significant 
implications for infrastructure provision. 

5.2 There are no section 17 implications 

Background Papers 

Draft National Planning Policy Framework – July 2011  Department for Communities and 
Local Government 

http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/planningandbuilding/pdf/1951811.pdf 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Easier to read summary – draft National Planning
Policy Framework 

www.communities.gov.uk

Page 39



Easier to read summary – draft National Planning 
Policy Framework 

August 2011 
Department for Communities and Local Government 

Page 40



Department for Communities and Local Government 
Eland House 
Bressenden Place 
London
SW1E 5DU 
Telephone: 030 3444 0000 
Website: www.communities.gov.uk 

  Crown Copyright, 2011 

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

This publication, excluding logos, may be reproduced free of charge in any 
format or medium for research, private study or for internal circulation within 
an organisation. This is subject to it being reproduced accurately and not used 
in a misleading context. The material must be acknowledged as Crown 
copyright and the title of the publication specified. 

You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any 
format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view 
this licence, visit http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-
licence/ or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, 
London TW9 4DU, or e-mail: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

If you require this publication in an alternative format please email 
alternativeformats@communities.gsi.gov.uk

DCLG Publications 
Tel: 030 0123 1124 
Fax: 030 0123 1125 

Email: product@communities.gsi.gov.uk
Online via the website: www.communities.gov.uk

August 2011 

ISBN: 978 1 4098 3111 2 

Page 41



Easier to read summary - Draft National Planning 
Policy Framework

Purpose

This easier to read summary is to for people who have difficulty reading. It is a 
summary of the main points in the draft Framework, and policy that we think is 
of most interest to travelling communities. But this summary does not contain 
all the detail of the draft Framework. The summary should be read alongside 
the draft National Planning Policy Framework. 

Introduction

It is important that we have national planning policy, to help the planning 
system to work properly and fairly. However, there are now more than 1,000 
pages of national planning policy, in 47 documents. It is sometimes hard to 
understand the policy.

The Government said it would put in place a clearer, more consistent National 
Planning Policy Framework. This Framework will be easier to understand and 
put into practice. The Framework will replace all the other national planning 
policy documents. A list of these documents is in the consultation document, 
pages 13-15. 

http://communities.gov.uk/documents/planningandbuilding/pdf/1951747.pdf

Localism Bill 

The Localism Bill seeks to:  

  Give new freedoms and flexibilities for local government.

  Give new rights and powers for communities and individuals. 

  Reform the planning system to make it more democratic and more 
effective.

  Make reforms to ensure that decisions about housing are taken locally.  

The Localism Bill contains proposals to make the planning system clearer, 
more democratic, and more effective. The draft Framework works with the 
Localism Bill to put into practice the Duty to Cooperate, Neighbourhood 
Planning and other changes. 

You can find out more about the Localism Bill in the updated A plain English 
guide to the Localism Bill at: 

http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/localismplainen
glishguide

3

Page 42



Draft National Planning Policy Framework [The draft Framework] 

The draft National Planning Policy Framework is now out for consultation. The 
consultation closes on 17 October. The draft Framework is only for England. 

The draft Framework sets out important issues to think about when local 
councils and communities make plans for, and decide, what new development 
should take place. Thinking through these important issues will help 
communities enjoy a better quality of life, both now and in the future.

The draft Framework sets out nationally important issues and leaves other 
matters for local councils and communities to decide themselves. So 
communities can plan to meet their needs, without the Government always 
getting in the way and telling them what to do.

The draft Framework is based on the policy of sustainable development. We 
think that sustainable development means:

What we do today to meet our needs, must not stop future 
generations being able to meet their own needs. 

The planning system should help to build a strong economy by ensuring there 
is enough land for growth, and ensuring that infrastructure is provided.

The planning system should also promote strong, vibrant and healthy 
communities by providing housing, good design and local services to support 
health and well-being. 

Planning decisions should protect, and try to improve, wildlife and the habitats 
they live in, as well as landscape, and old buildings. 

The Government wants planning decisions to be based on up to date local 
plans, put together with communities, and based on adequate evidence. 

Presumption in favour of sustainable development (the presumption) 

The presumption is a new policy designed to ensure that the planning system 
as a whole focuses on opportunities. The presumption means that where local 
plans are not up-to-date, or not a clear basis for decisions, development 
should be allowed. But the development should not be allowed if it would 
undermine the key principles for sustainability in the Framework (such as 
protecting the Green Belt and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty). The 
presumption also means that where development is in line with the local plan, 
it should be allowed without delay. 

The presumption will encourage plan-making by councils and communities, 
giving them a greater say in how they meet their development needs. It will 
also give communities, developers and investors more certainty about the 
types of applications that are likely to be approved. This will help to speed up 
the planning process.

4

Page 43



Local plans, health and well-being 

Local plans are documents prepared by the local council which set out where 
different kinds of development should be located, to meet the needs of the 
whole community. Local plans can contain policies to guide new housing, 
business development and infrastructure, and decisions on important issues 
such as climate change and the natural and historic environment. Local 
councils should work closely with the community and business to identify and 
plan for the needs of the area. 

Local plans should be based on adequate, up-to-date and relevant evidence. 
This evidence should cover economic, social and environmental information 
about the area, both now and options for the future.

Local councils should work with public health bodies to understand the health 
of the local community, including how the community might change in the 
future. Local councils and health bodies should understand anything that 
stops gains in health and well-being. 

Duty to Co-operate

The Localism Bill will place a new Duty to Co-operate on councils. The Duty 
means that local councils should to work together, with other public bodies, on 
planning issues that impact beyond local boundaries. The draft Framework 
puts into practice the Duty to Co-operate.

It is important for councils and other public bodies to work together across 
boundaries, to plan for the housing, transport and infrastructure that local 
people need. For example, if lots of people living in one council travel to work 
in a neighbouring city, then the two councils should be working together. The 
Duty to Co-operate also means that local councils should work together, to 
plan for the needs of travelling communities. 

Neighbourhood planning  

The draft Framework supports neighbourhood planning - a new tool that is 
being set up in the Localism Bill. It will help communities to say what their 
area should look like: where new shops, offices or homes should go. With a
neighbourhood development order, the community can grant planning 
permission for new buildings they want to see go ahead.  Neighbourhood 
development orders will allow new homes and offices to be built without the 
developers having to apply for separate planning permission. 

If approved by a local referendum (vote), the neighbourhood plan will need to 
be put into force by the local council.

5

Page 44



Promoting sustainable growth and prosperity 

Economic growth

The draft Framework makes clear that local councils should aim to meet the 
needs of business, and help make the economy fit for the future.  Local 
councils should support both town centres and rural business, and raise the 
quality of life in rural areas.  Local councils should have a clear economic 
strategy for their area, based on understanding business needs to support 
sustainable growth.

Town centres

The Government wants to support town centres and to protect local high 
streets. The draft Framework says that town centres are at the heart of 
communities. The draft Framework maintains the ‘town centres first’ 
approach, which means that new shops and leisure developments should look 
for sites in town centres first. Only if suitable sites are not to be had, shops 
and leisure developments can look for edge of centre and then out of centre 
sites.

Sustainable transport

The Government wants to cut down pollution and traffic jams by making it 
easy for people to use public transport. The draft Framework makes it clear 
that new development should have good public transport links, with priority 
given to cyclists and people on foot. Important local facilities, such as schools 
and shops, should be within walking distance of most new properties where 
possible. The draft Framework makes clear that it will not always be easy to 
get good public transport in rural areas, so other transport will have to be 
used.

Communications infrastructure

The draft Framework promotes growth for the telecommunications industry, 
but this growth should be sensitive to local areas. We agree with the industry 
policy of sharing masts and using existing buildings, and well designed and 
camouflaged equipment.  

Minerals  

Minerals are vital to meeting society's needs. The Government’s aim is to 
ensure we get enough minerals from our country to have the steady supply 
needed to support sustainable growth. But in doing so we must limit impacts 
on the natural and local environment.  

6

Page 45



Planning for strong, vibrant and healthy communities 

Housing

The policies in this section do not apply to traveller sites. 

Local councils should undertake a study called a ‘Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment’ to help them understand how many houses, and what kind of 
houses, are needed in the area. They also look at what land can be used for 
housing development in a study called a ‘Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment’. The draft Framework makes clear councils should ensure their 
local plan meets the needs for market and affordable housing in their areas.

The draft Framework says that local plans should identify sites or broad areas 
to allow 15 years housing growth where possible. Within that 15 years worth 
of sites, local councils should identify enough sites with good prospects of 
being built for five years. An extra one year of sites should also be found to 
create competition and choice in the market for land. If the local council does 
not find enough sites for the first five years of the plan, the council should 
grant permission for developments in line with the ‘Presumption in Favour of 
Sustainable Development’.

The draft Framework drops the national target on how much housing 
development should happen on land that has been previously developed land 
– also called brownfield land.

In rural areas local councils should plan housing to meet local requirements, 
particularly if local people require affordable housing. Local councils should 
consider if allowing some market housing would help provide more affordable 
houses for local people. Housing should not be built in places far away from 
local services.  

Out-of-the-way homes in the countryside should not be allowed unless there 
are special reasons, such as: 

  The need for a rural worker to live near their job in the countryside. 

  Where development would help keep a special historic building, or re-use 
a disused building. 

  Or where the design of the building is very good. 

Design

Good design is important for sustainable development. The planning system 
should promote good design for all development, including traveller sites. 
Local Plans and neighbourhood plans should set out design standards for 
new developments. 

Developers will be expected to work closely with people affected by their 
proposals. Their designs should take account of the views of the community.

7

Page 46



Sustainable communities 

The Government wants communities to be strong, vibrant and healthy. These 
communities should have good quality buildings in their area, and have good 
local services that serve community needs. 

All parts of a community should be involved in preparing local and 
neighbourhood plans. Local councils should plan to provide community 
facilities, such as local shops, meeting places, public houses and places of 
worship.

Green space designation  

The draft Framework sets out a new tool for local communities to protect 
green areas that are very special and important to them. They can save local 
green space land to be protected that is important to local life because:  

  It has natural beauty. 

  It has important history. 

  It is important for sport and entertainments.  

  It is tranquil or calming. 

  It is rich in wildlife.  

These green areas will be planned so they work with, and do not undermine, 
creating homes, jobs and other essential services.

Green Belt 

The Green Belt is a belt of land surrounding a town or city; it is used to stop 
towns growing into each other. Green Belt areas are set out in local plans. 
The draft Framework keeps current Green Belt protections. All inappropriate 
development harmful to Green Belt is not allowed. Local councils are asked to 
try to make the Green Belt better. Local councils can do this in lots of ways, 
for example by having walking paths, more wildlife and plants, and by making 
the land look better.

The draft Framework has a new policy for Green Belt land that has been 
developed in the past. At the moment, this land can only be used for new 
development if the local plan allows it. In the draft Framework, Green Belt 
land developed in the past may be used, in some circumstances, for new 
development.

8

Page 47



Looking after the environment and making it better  

Climate change

The draft Framework sets out planning's important role in tackling climate 
change, and moving to a low carbon economy. Planning can help lower 
transport fumes and green house gases released into the air, through: 

  Choosing good locations [see transport, above] and layouts for new 
development.

  Support for better energy efficiency in existing buildings, and  

  Backing the delivery of renewable and low carbon energy, including 
community-led schemes.

We also want to ensure new development is ready for future climate change, 
by getting its location and design right. For example, local councils should 
make sure that new housing estates are not at risk of flooding.

The draft Framework also meets the Government’s commitment to stopping 
needless building in areas of high flood risk.  

Access to the coast

The draft Framework says the Government not only wants to protect our great 
coastline, but also to ensure people can get to it. New development should 
not get in the way of a non-stop, signed and managed route around the coast, 
for all to enjoy.  

The natural environment

The draft Framework keeps protection for: 

  Areas of countryside of special quality and beauty called “Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty”. 

  National Parks. 

  Areas of countryside that are the very best sites for wild creatures and 
plants called “Sites of Special Scientific Interest”.  

  And other special environmental areas which protect the character of our 
country's landscape, and preserve wildlife. 

Biodiversity – different kinds of countryside, wildlife and plants 

A healthy and varied natural environment is important to our sense of 
wellbeing. The draft Framework says that the planning system should try not 
just to protect, but, where possible, improve biodiversity. We need to make 
sure we don’t just have isolated pockets of wildlife, but rich and joined up 
green spaces. Planning permission should not be given for development 

9

Page 48



resulting in loss or damage to irreplaceable habitats, including ancient 
woodland.

Noise and light pollution

Noise and light pollution impacts badly on people’s quality of life. The draft 
Framework says that planners must try to avoid too much noise pollution from 
new developments, and to protect tranquil areas prized for their peace and 
quiet. By encouraging good design, planning decisions should limit the affect 
of light pollution.

Historic environment

The draft Framework keeps protections for old buildings and monuments 
(these are called heritage assets). Development causing substantial harm or 
loss to an important heritage asset is not allowed, unless in wholly exceptional 
circumstances. Similar protections should be given to unofficial sites of 
archaeological interest, if it can be shown they are of substantial significance.  

Local councils are encouraged to show how they will protect and improve 
heritage assets most at risk of being lost, for communities to enjoy. Councils 
should have up to date evidence about the historic environment in their areas, 
and use it to weigh up the significance of heritage assets and how they 
contribute to the local area.

10

Page 49



Department for Communities and Local Government

© Crown Copyright, August 2011 

ISBN: 978 1 4098 3111 2 

Page 50


	Agenda
	2 To sign the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Corporate Business Plan 2011-15 - Report and Appendix One herewith.
	CBP Appendix One

	6 Quarter 1 Performance Update - Planning Delivery specific items - Report and Appendix One herewith.
	PD Committee - Appendix One - Q1 Update - 110913.pdf

	7 Conservation - Report herewith.
	8 Draft National Planning Policy Framework - Report and CLG Summary herewith.
	CLG Summary


